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ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The W. H. Langley House is located just north of Elm City in the mid­
dle of Toisnot Township, one of the richest agricultural areas in Wilson 
County The house is situated on the north side of SR 1003 in a curve of 
the road and is visible from some distance across the wide expanse of the 
cleared fields that surround it. 

The core of the Langley House was a late nineteenth century frame 
farmhouse of modest size. An 1897 photograph of this farmhouse shows a 
simple three-bay single-story dwelling with two exterior end chimneys, a 
wood shake shingle roof and a large front porch sheltering most of the 
facade. The porch had a shed roof trimmed with scalloped sawnwork orna­
ment, plain square posts worked in a lattice design and a sawnwork balus­
trade. The central front door was flanked by two large six-over-six 
windows with louvered shutters. The house vas set on brick piers and just 
visible in the background was a gable roofed structure which may have been 
a smokehouse or detached kitchen. 

The present house, enlarged and remodelled in the Colonial Revival 
style in 1911, bears little resemblance to this earlier structure. The 
house stands in a grove of mature trees and is two and a half stories tall 
and five bays wide with a rear kitchen ell. A complex wraparound porch 
with projecting pedimented pavilions on each corner shelters three sides 
of the house. A steeply pitched gable roof permits the use of the attic 
and a Palladian window in each gable and four large pedimented dormers 
illuminate the attic space. The closed gables are further enhanced by 
lacy, sawnwork ornament and carved, faceted brackets. The overhanging 
eaves are likewise supported by similar brackets. A wide, plain frieze 
runs all the way around the house. One curious feature of the house which 
may give a clue to its origin as a one-story farmhouse is the placement of 
the interior chimney which rises through the middle of the/roof between 
the two dormers and may express the placement of one of the original ex­
terior end chimneys. The five bays on the first floor are not symmetrically 
arranged; two widely spaced bays are located on the left side of the facade 
while a door flanked by two windows are located on the right side. 

The interior plan may likewise give clues to the original configura­
tion of the earlier farmhouse even though the woodwork is that of a renova­
tion carried out by W. H. Langley, Jr.,in the 1930s. The front door of 
the house leads to a large sitting room divided from a dining room at the 
rear by multipaned glass doors. A narrow hall links the sitting room with 
a corresponding set of rooms on the left side of the house. This hall is 
located in the front of the house and the entrance to an enclosed stair 
is located in this hall. The kitchen is located at the rear of the house. 
The second floor was not accessible. 

The only major change in the house besides the change of the interior 
woodwork in the 1930s was the recent addition of a carport to the western 
elevation which is accessible through the porch. 

The house remains in use as a farmhouse and is surrounded by two hun­
dred and five acres of land in agricultural use. Associated with the 
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immediate house property is a frame toolshed and a small frame storage 
shed of early twentieth century vintage. Other farm buildings include two 
log tobacco barns, three frame tobacco barns, a frame packhouse, and a 
frame tenant house and its associated buildings slightly west of the Langley 
House on SR 1003. The tenant house was built in the bungalow style circa 
1930 and one single-story frame barn and one frame tobacco barn of similar 
vintage are associated with it. 

The structure, of course, is closely related to the surrounding environment. Archaeo­
logical remains, such as trash pits, wells, and structural remains, which may be present, 
can provide information valuable to the understanding and interpretation of the structure. 
Information concerning use patterns, social standing and mobility, as well as structural 
details are often only eQident in the archaeological record. Therefore, archaeological 
remains may well be an important component of the significance of the structure. At this 
time no investigation has been done to discover these remains, but it is probable that 
they exist, and this should be considered in any development of the property. 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

The W. H. Langley House, situated on a 205-acre farm, is a noteworthy example of how turn­
of-the-century economic prosperity altered the lifestyle of Wilson County's rural inhabi­
tants. The present two-and-a-half-story frame house, considered a significant landmark in 
the Elm CitJ area, is the product of a 1911 Colonial Revival remodeling of a modest one-story 
farmhouse built around 1865. During the remodeling, which was reportedly executed by 
a builder named Winstead, a second story was added, the facade was widened, and a wrap­
around porch displaying design elements found only within the vicinity of Elm City was 
installed. The home belonged to William Haywood Langley, a farmer by trade, from 
1867 until his death in 1918, and remains in possession of the Langley family. 

CRITERIA ASSESSMENT 

A. Associated with the period of economic prosperity in the fertile agricultural region 
near Elm City, the progression of the W. H. Langley House from a small farmhouse to a 
substantial residence exemplifies the manner in which increased wealth affected the 
lifestyle of Wilson County's rural residents. 

B. Associated with William Haywood Langley, a farmer who owned the property for over 
50 years, the W. H. Langley House and farm remains in the possession of Langley's 
heirs. 

c. The W. H. Langley House, originally a ca. 1865 farmhouse, was remodeled in 1911 in the 
Colonial Revival style. The home displays a wraparound porch with intricate sawnwork 
detailing unique to the vicinity of Elm City. The residence, which remains in use 
as a farmhouse, is considered a significant landmark in thff Elm City area. 



HISTORICAL BACKGROUND 

ey House is one of the best examples of how the turn 
economic pro altered the Ii Ie of Wilson County's 

rural inhabitants The core of the Langley House was built between 1861 
and 1866 1 The original house was a modest farmhouse thought to have been 
built for Willie Williams. 2 The single-story three-bay frame farmhouse with 
its exterior end chimneys and large front porch was typical of Wilson County 
farmhouse architecture of the period. Little is known about Willie Williams 
except that he was born in 1835 and in 1860 he ~wned real property valued 
at $1,250 and pyrsonal property valued at $300. He married Amanda Green 
on May 17, 185~ in Wilson County and two children, John Ausiin (born in 1857) 
and Sallie (born September, 1859), were born to the couple. In 1861 he 
purchased two hundred and fifty acres of land from John G. Williams, the 
executor of the estate of Jeremiah Winstead. 5 When Williams purchased the 
land in 1861 was with the understanding that Nancy Wins~ead, the widow of 
Jeremiah Winstead, would have life rights to the property. According to 
Jeremiah Winstead's will, probated in 1851, his wife was to have life rights 
to the property which w~s to be sold upon her death and the profits divided 
between their children. Judging by the date of the sale, it is likely 
Nancy Winstead had died by 1861. 

Willie Williams left no will, but apparently one-third of the property 
upon which thg house was constructed became the property of his wife Amanda 
as her dower. Williams died between 1861, when he purchased the property, 
and July 17, 1866, when his wife, Amanda, remarried. On December 3, 1866 
Williams' land was put up for sale and David L. Hardy purchased the house 
tract. Hardy resold the lan~ in little more than a month, on January 25, 
1867, to William H. Langley. William Haywood Langley married Amanda Green 
Williams on July 17, 1866, and the couple moved into the house said to have 
been built and occupied by Willie Williams in the following year. lO 

Amanda Langley died between 1866 and 1884, but·she left no will. We H. 
Langley then married Martha A. Pridgen in the Methodist Church in Toisnot 
(now Elm City). William Haywood Lan!~ey was a farmer by trade and he was 
born on August 8, 1845 ~n Nash County. He was the son of Singleton Lang-
ley and Mildred Louis. l Langley ad~~d on to his holdings, acquiring more 
land in the late nineteenth century. A photograph in the possession of 
the Langley family shows the original farmhouse in 1897,15 but within 
fifteen years of the date of the photograph the house had become too modest 

Edgecombe County Wills, Edgecombe County Courthouse. 
Eighth Census of the United States: 1860. Wilson County 
Wilson County Deeds, Wilson County Courthouse 
Wilson County Marriage Licenses, Wilson County Courthouse. 
Wilson County Vital Statistics Reoords, vJilson County Courthouse. 

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY 205 acre s 
UTM REFERENCES 

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 

See enclosed planametric map with property outlined in red. 
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and old-fashioned for the Langley family According to family tradition 
Langle¥ hired a builder named Winstead to enlarge and remodel the house in 
1911. 1 Winstead is said by the Langley family to have lived on the corner 
of North and Railroad streets in Elm City,17 and according to the Wilson 
County deeds a George Winstead, possibly the builder of the Langley House, 
purchased this property in the late nineteenth century.18 A search of the 
census records and contemporary business directories reveals a number of 
Winsteads from Elm City who were employed as builders or carpenters in the 
late nineteenth and early twentieth centuries, but the name of George Wins­
tead does not appear in this list. 19 

The contractor raised the house to two and a half stories and changed 
it from a three-bay facade to a five-bay facade. A large wraparound porch 
of some complexity was also added to the house. This type of porch is 
only found within the vicinity of Elm City in Wilson County and may have 
been the trade mark of Winstead or some other builder which gained popularity 
locally. The remodelling of the house in the Colonial Revival style created 
a more imposing residence, one that has become a real landmark in the Elm 
City area. The house stands today much as it did when it was remodelled 
in 1911, and the Langley family continues to reside in the house. 

When W. H. Langley, Sr., died in 1918 he devised the house in equal 
shares to his widow and his son, W. H. Langley, Jr. 20 W. H. Langley, Jr.'s 
widow now owns and occupies the house. 

Footnotes 

lWillie Williams, the original owner of the property purchased the 
property in 1861; John G. Williams, executor of Jeremiah Winstead to Willie 
Williams, September 11, 1861, Book 1, 790, Wilson County Deeds, Wilson, 
hereinafter referred to as Willie Williams deed. A photograph of the 
house inscribed "Our Home 1897" is in the possession of Mr. We H. Langley, 
Jr., of Elm City, hereinafter cited as W. H. Langley House photo, 1897. 

2Author's interview with Mrs. W. H. Langley, Jr., present owner of 
the house, hereinafter cited as Langley interview. 

3Eighth Census of the United States: 1850, Wilson County, North 
Carolina. 

4Wilson County Marriage Records, Wilson County Courthouse, Wilson. 
See also Eighth Census of the United States.: 1860, Wilson County, North 
Carolina .. 

5Willie Williams married Amanda Green May 17, 1856, Wilson County 
Marriage Licenses, Wilson County Courthouse. See also Willie Williams deed. 

6Willie Williams deed. 
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7Jeremiah Winstead Will, September, 1850, Book F, 463, Edgecombe County 
Wills, Tarboro 

8David L. Hardy to William H. Langley, January 25, 1867, Book 2, 591, 
Wilson County deeds, Wilson, assures a clear title for the property "ex­
cept the right of dower in the said land which accrued to the wife of 
said Langley from her former husband Willie Williams." 

9David L. Hardy to W. H. Langley, January 25, 1867, Book 2, 591, Wilson 
County deeds, Wilson. 

10William H. Langley married Amanda Williams on July 17, 1866, Wilson 
County Marriage Licenses, Wilson County Courthouse. 

llw. H. Langley married Martha A. Pridgeon [sic] on August 5, 1884, 
Wilson County Marriage Licenses, Wilson County Courthouse. 

12Wilson County Vital Statistics records, Wilson County Courthouse. 

13 . 1 C . 1 .. d' 1 th Wl son ounty Vlta Statlstlcs recor s, Wl son County Cour ouse. 

14see deeds conveying land to W. H. Langley from M. C. Pleasant 
(Book 68, 602) and John De Wells & John L. Bailey (Book 28, 85), Wilson 
County Deeds, Wilson. 

15 
W. H. Langley House photo, 1897. 

16 
Langley interview. 

17 
Langley interview. 

18 
W. W. Parker to Susan Winstead, December IS, 1883, Book 22, 397, 

Wilson County Deeds, Wilson. 

19Kate Ohno, Wilson County's Architectural Heritage (Wilson: 1981), 
170, gives an Alex. Winstead, builder active in Toisnot (Elm City) c. 
1884-1896, a Charles Winstead active c. 1880, a David S. Winstead active 
c. 1880, an Emerson Winstead active c. 1860 in the town of Wilson, a James 
G. Winstead active in Toisnot c. 1880, a Roberson Winstead active c. 1880 
and the firm of Winstead & Braswell, builders, active in Elm City c. 1902-
1903 .. 

20 
W. H. Langley, Sr., will, September 17, 1918, Book 6, 145, Wilson 

County Wills, Wilson. 
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10 Boundary Justification 

The W. H. Langley House is being nominated with 205 acres of land. The core of, ·.the 
house was built on a 250-acre tract purchased by Willie and Amanda Williams in 1861. 
The property and house were purchased by W. H. Langley, farmer, in the late nineteenth 
century. Langley was responsible for the overbuilding of the original modest farmhouse. 
The original house, the overbuilding, and the farmland have been associated ,since 
the mid-nineteenth century, and the property continues to be a productive farm. 

13 Photographs 

The W. H. Langley House was initially recorded in 1980 during the Wilson County 
survey. The site was revisited in 1985 to determine the condition of that property. 
The house is still occupied, and well-maintained and is accurately depicted in the 
1980 photographs. 
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